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The Story of The Walmsley House (WH) in the Australian Native Garden Royal Park 
The Australian Native Garden in Royal Park: In 1972, well before the 1984 Royal Park Master Plan was developed,  Grace Fraser (9-3-1921 to 3-7-2010),  a pioneer in Australian landscape architecture,  designed the Australian Native Garden (ANG)  to display Australian indigenous vegetation. A circular path or roadway was included in the original plan as it was thought it would cater as a detour for overseas visitors driving from Tullamarine Airport (opened in 1970 to replace Essendon Airport) to the city. The 4 hectare site of the Australian Native Garden,  bounded by Gatehouse Street and Royal Parade and The Avenue,  is on the east side of Royal Park and, for years, had been used as a Council work depot with a collection of sheds.  Luckily The Walmsley House (WH) – one of the “sheds” - was not cleared from the site when plans for the ANG were implemented. A creek originally flowed north - south through the site down into what is now Ievers Reserve. The creek was put into an underground drain but the billabong and a swale are reminders of the original water course. The River Red Gums which grew originally along the watercourse have survived. 

Advent of the 1984 Royal Park Master Plan and the 1997 Review: In 1984 The Royal Park Master Plan was announced. The winning entry by landscape architects Brian Stafford and Ronald Jones expressed a philosophy that the character of the Park was inherent in its form – “a place where the earth swells, the dome of the sky soars overhead and the horizon beckons”. A sense of the landscape at the time of Europeans’ first encounter was to be evoked by planting indigenous species and enhancing the park’s spacious quality.  Thus the now established ANG fitted with this philosophy.  Unfortunately the 1997 Review of the Master Plan recommended that the Walmsley House, still thought of as a shed, be razed to the ground and the nearby Golden Wych Elm – an exotic - be given the chop. WH escaped demolition, however, and continued to be used by Council staff and the Golden Elm survived.
Discovery of WH: In February 1998 Julianne Bell, then RPPG Secretary, “discovered” the WH in the ANG. (Bruce Crotty - a gardener with the Melbourne City Council (MCC) recognised its antiquity and thought it might be the depot for the horse drawn tram.) She recognised the plaque on the WH, having been a National Trust guide on the iron houses of Coventry Street, South Melbourne. (The horse drawn tram depot disappeared long ago.)  
What is the WH?  The building was manufactured by Walmsley of London, hence the name on the plaque on the house. Benjamim Walmsley was a wholesale ironmonger of 127 London Road, Southwark (London) who supplied a number of prefabricated iron buildings to the colony of Victoria. (He might have been subcontracted by John Walker who exported a number of similar houses.)  The WH is a unique, prefabricated iron house of the mid nineteenth century (the Victorian gold rush era.) It was brought to the colony in 1853 or 1854 for use as a public building - a military depot or lock up.  (They were known as camp ovens as were so hot in summer.).  In 1862 the WH was moved to Royal Park for the first official residence of the Park Ranger and Bailiff, Mr Francis Meaker. (According to the Argus of 1923, the WH was always in Royal Park. It was reportedly used as a police station to guard the convoys from the gold fields travelling down Royal Parade.)  In 1905 Frances was succeeded by his son Charles.  The family lived here for 79 years. Julianne Bell tried for many years to find Meaker descendents and finally made contact with Tony Ferguson (Melbourne) and Clive Meaker (NSW) – Frances’great grandsons.   
Inclusion of WH on State Heritage Register and the Register of the National Trust (Vic):  In 1998 RPPG was successful in nominating the WH to Heritage Victoria for inclusion on its State Heritage Register and the National Trust for heritage listing, thanks to the support of Emeritus Professor of Planning in the University of Melbourne Miles Lewis.  He is an architectural historian and an expert on nineteenth century Victorian building technology. He had written a section on the WH in his book “Early Victorian Buildings” but did not realise that a Walmsley building survived in Royal Park, although a section of the building had been removed.  

Further Threats to the WH: Heritage Victoria - in “restoring” the WH – painted it a bright red. We assumed that the restorers must have been colour blind.  It was repainted at RPPG’s insistence but ended up a rather unsatisfactory mulled wine colour.  The MCC badly neglected the building and, after trees were found growing out of the spouting, maintenance improved. In 1998 Council commissioned a “Cultural Heritage Study” of Royal Park which actually represented a threat.  There was a minor scandal when the consultant, Georgina Whitehead, recommended the demolition and/or removal of the WH: “The unsightly nature of the shed (WH) and its prominent position at the edge of the Native Garden make it desirable that it be dismantled and the relevant sections re-erected or stored in a more appropriate location” Her Cultural Study was withdrawn by the MCC. 
Golden Wych Elm in ANG on Significant Tree Register: In 2000 RPPG successfully nominated the Golden Wych Elm (Ulma Glabra Lutencens Salis) for inclusion on the Significant Tree Register of the National Trust of Australia (Victoria). It is estimated as now being over 80 years old and was possibly planted by Charles Meaker. 
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